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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be
attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to
forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on
GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to

professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM. The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is
publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to
issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they need to

have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or

in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of TeleEye Holdings Limited collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to TeleEye Holdings Limited. The
directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report
have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and

reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT XEH4&

I am delighted to report that the Group achieved a double-digit
growth in revenue and a net profit of about HK$2 million in the
past year. On behalf of the Board of directors, I would like to thank

all staff for their contributions, dedications and teamwork.

The growth was mainly driven by the launch of a series of TeleEye
RX Video Recording Servers during the year. The core technology
in RX is the multi-stream video compression technology SMAC-M
that our Group specially developed for video surveillance
applications. The benefits of SMAC-M are well received by customers
and further strengthen our position as a leading technology company

in remote video surveillance field.

In the coming year, the Group will launch more products using
the SMAC-M technology. Besides launching superior products, we
will continue to improve our quality management system, expand
our sales and support network, tighten cost and inventory control

and strengthen our business development efforts.

We firmly believe that our focus on quality product and own
brand marketing will bring long term profitability to the Group.
Finally, I would like to express my sincere thanks to our investors,
bankers, business partners and staff for their continuous support to

the Group.

Dr. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 12 September 2007
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ZEEHBER S

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 30 June 2007, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately HK$46,635,000, representing an increase of about
25% as compared with a turnover of approximately HK$37,356,000
of the preceding year. The growth in turnover was attributable to
the Group’s efforts in global market expansion and advanced product
development strategies. Profit attributable to shareholders for the
year ended 30 June 2007 amounted to approximately HK$2,087,000,
as compared to the loss attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$273,000 for last year. Earnings per share for the year ended 30
June 2007 was HK1.16 cents, compared to loss per share of HKO0.15
cents for the year ended 30 June 2006.

The Group’s balance sheet remains strong, with substantial
liquidity and a prudently low level of gearing. During the year ended
30 June 2007, the Group had capitalized operating costs of
approximately HK$626,000 (2006: HK$741,000) in respect of
development of advanced CCTV products. To cope with the Group’s
business expansion, overall operating costs had increased by
approximately 6.5% to HK$20,101,000 as compared to
HK$18,874,000 for the year ended 30 June 2006.

COMMENTS ON SEGMENT INFORMATION
Europe

Europe was still the largest market of the Group, whose turnover
for the year ended 30 June 2007 amounted to approximately
HK$16,662,000 (2006: HK$10,905,000) or 35.7% (2006: 29.2%) of
the Group’s turnover. TeleEye Europe Limited (a subsidiary in the
UK) operates as a direct selling office commencing from April 2004.
It contributed significant effort in the provision of technical and
marketing support in the region. Segment profit increased to
approximately HK$3,671,000 (2006: HK$953,000). It was due to
the increase in turnover and implementation of stringent cost control

measures.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ZEEHBER S

Hong Kong

Hong Kong was the second largest market of the Group. Turnover
for the year ended 30 June 2007 amounted to approximately
HK$6,077,000 (2006: HK$5,935,000) or 13% (2006: 16%) of the
Group’s turnover. Segment profit was approximately HK$793,000
(2006: HK$2,246,000).

Other Asia Countries

Turnover for other Asia countries, excluding Hong Kong &
Singapore, for the year ended 30 June 2007 amounted to
approximately HK$5,616,000 (2006: 4,911,000) or 12% (2006:
13.1%) of the Group’s turnover. Segment profit was approximately

HK$573,000 (2006: HK$960,000).

Africa

Turnover from Africa for the year ended 30 June 2007 increased
by 175% to approximately HK$5,318,000 (2006: HK$1,935,000). It
accounted for 11.4% (2006: 5.2%) of the Group’s turnover. Segment
profit increased to approximately HK$1,670,000 (2006:
HK$650,000). The increase in turnover was due to the increasing
marketing efforts applied in the region. During the year, the Group
appointed a new distributor in South Africa to further strengthen

the Group’s presence there.

Singapore

Due to increase in market demand, turnover for Singapore for
the year ended 30 June 2007 was approximately HK$5,108,000
(2006: HK$4,338,000) or 11% (2006: 11.6%) of the Group’s turnover.
The segment reported a profit of approximately HK$702,000 (2006:
HK$136,000).

Middle East

Turnover for Middle East for the year ended 30 June 2007 was
approximately HK$4,976,000 (2006: HK$4,755,000) or 10.7% (2006:
12.7%) of the Group’s turnover. The segment reported a profit of
approximately HK$1,600,000 (2006: HK$1,727,000).

Others

Other geographical segments included the Americas and
Australia. Turnover for the year ended 30 June 2007 was
approximately HK$2,878,000 (2006: HK$4,577,000) or 6.2% (2006:
12.2%) of the Group’s total turnover. The segment reported a profit
of approximately HK$1,012,000 (2006: HK$908,000).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ZEEHBER S

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in research and development
and sales and marketing of audio and video surveillance systems.
For the financial year ended 30 June 2007, the Group succeeded in
achieving growth and profitability in the highly competitive CCTV
market. This reflected management’s effort of providing a wide range
of high-tech products and customer services to the market, and the
optimisation of the Group’s operational efficiency in a competitive
environment. During the year, the Group continued to conduct
seminars and exhibitions in various countries with a view to enhance
TeleEye brand image worldwide. In July 2006, the Group had
appointed, under a licensing and distributor agreement, TeleEye
(Mauritius) Limited as its distributor in Mauritius to further expand

the sales network there.

As part of the growth strategy, the Group is delighted to have its
UK office relocated from Reading to a larger premises in Maidenhead.
The relocation improved the Group’s operational efficiency and
allowed more resources, facilities and space to cope with the growth
in the UK.

Product Development

During the year, the Group launched TeleEye RX330 Series
Video Recording Transmitters (“TeleEye RX330”) consisting of four
(RX334), eight (RX338) and sixteen (RX3316) channel models.
TeleEye RX330 are high performance video transmitters which
support up to two internal hard drives for standalone and remote
operations. Being inherited from the success of their counterpart
TeleEye RX360, these new models combine fast video transmission,
high-resolution recording and flexible connections in one single
box. Featuring with the Group’s revolutionary Multi-rate Video
Coding Technology (SMAC-M), TeleEye RX330 deliver truly “no
compromise” on both efficient video transmission and excellent DVD

quality recording performance.

In March 2007, the Group added a series of new features on the
TeleEye RX series product (TeleEye RX360 series and RX330 series),
including advanced security functions, remote keyboard control,
flexible SMS event notification and video extraction through DVD

writer or USB flash drive.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ZEEHBER S

In May 2007, the Group has expanded the RX series product
line by introducing TeleEye RX504, a professional mobile video
recording server using the SMAC-M. TeleEye RX504 digitally
compresses videos and generates independent data streams to cater
for efficient transmission and high-resolution recording. It is one of
the world’s first mobile digital video servers which support HSDPA.
TeleEye RX504 designs for tough automotive environment allowing
it to withstand repetitive shocks and heavy vibrations generated by
travelling vehicles. It can be detached easily and is protected from
shock and vibration by a specially designed shock absorption

mounting bracket.

During the year ended 30 June 2007, the Group’s RX series
product contributed approximately 49% of the Group’s total

turnover.

The Award

In October 2006, TeleEye RX360 Series Digital Video Recording
Transmitters (“TeleEye RX360”) has won the Grand Award and
the Gold Award (Security Category) in the 2006 Hong Kong
Electronic Industries Association (HKEIA) Award for Outstanding
Innovation and Technology Products during the Hong Kong
Electronic Fair 2006, the largest electronic exhibitions in Asia and
the second largest in the world. This is the fourth consecutive year
that the HKEIA Award goes to TeleEye technology products.
Moreover, this is the first time that the Group has received the
Grand Award, the top honour in the HKEIA Award.

In February 2007, the Group received the Technological
Achievement Certificate of Merit of the 2006 Hong Kong Awards
for Industries organized by Hong Kong Science and Technology
Parks Corporation. The award is presented to a company that has
innovative achievement, which impacts on both business and on
daily life. The award reflects a standard of recognition to

technological excellence in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ZEEHBER S

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group will continue its policy of focusing
on its core strength of developing and sourcing innovative and
quality products, and will continue to explore into new markets in
countries with good market potential in order to broaden the source
of revenue. The Group expected that the revenue from the TeleEye
RX series product will continue to be a major contribution of the
Group’s total turnover. The management will remain constantly
vigilant of controlling the costs whilst maintaining optimal efficiency
of the Group. The directors remain cautiously optimistic about the
future growth of the Group and believe that the Group can continue
to be a leading advanced technological supplier in the global market

of video management applications.

DIVIDENDS
The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2007 (2006: Nil).

EMPLOYEES

As at 30 June 2007, the Group employed 36 (2006: 34) full time
employees in Hong Kong and 16 (2006: 17) full time employees in
the PRC and overseas offices. The Group’s staff costs, including
directors’ emoluments, employees’ salaries and retirement benefits
scheme contribution amounted to approximately HK$13,194,000
(2006: HK$12,601,000).

Employees are remunerated in accordance with individual’s
responsibility and performance and remains competitive with the
prevailing market rates. Other fringe benefits such as medical
insurance, retirement benefit scheme and discretionary bonus are
offered to all employees. Share options are granted at the directors’
discretion and under the terms and conditions of share option

schemes.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO

As at 30 June 2007, non-interest bearing loans were outstanding
to minority shareholders. The loans were to finance the operation
of some of the Group’s subsidiaries and were repayable on demand.
There were no drawing and repayment to these loans during the

year.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ZHE

Other than the above, the Group mainly used its internal
resources to finance its operations during the year. The Group has
available banking facilities of HK$5 million from Hang Seng Bank
and none of them had been utilized as at 30 June 2007 (30 June
2006: Nil). Consequently, the Group’s gearing ratio, as a percentage
of bank and other borrowings and long-term debt over total assets,

as at 30 June 2007 was approximately 1% (30 June 2006: 1%).

The Group had bank balances, deposits and cash of approximately
HK$11,726,000 as at 30 June 2007 (30 June 2006: HK$13,354,000)

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Apart from the aforesaid non-interest bearing loans from minority
shareholders, the Group did not have any borrowings during the

year under review.

The details of the change in the Company’s share capital during
the year ended 30 June 2007 are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements. The details of change of share options are set out in

note 25 to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
The Group did not make any significant new investment during

the year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES
The Group did not make any material acquisitions and disposal

of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 30 June 2007, the Group did not have any charge on its
assets (30 June 2006: Nil).

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Other than those disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated
24 April 2001, the Group does not have any other plan for material

investments or capital assets for the coming year.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ZEEHBER S

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND RELATED HEDGES

During the year under review, the Group’s transactions were
substantially denominated in either Hong Kong, US dollars and
British Pounds. Since the Hong Kong dollars are pegged to the US
dollars, the Board considers that the potential foreign exchange
exposure of the Group is limited. During the year under review, the
Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes
(30 June 2006: Nil). The Group closely monitors its foreign currency
exposure from time to time and will engage appropriate hedging

activities should needs arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2007, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (30 June 2006: Nil).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EEREREZEAEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chan Chok Ki, aged 52, is a founder, chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group, responsible for the overall
corporate management and business development of the Group. He
also actively participates in the strategic research and development
of the Group. Dr. C.K. Chan is a research veteran in the digital
signal processing and image compression technology. He had taught
at the City University of Hong Kong (“City University”) since 1985
and was a professor of the Department of Electronic Engineering at
the City University before he officially became involved in the
management of the Group on a full-time basis in December 2000.
He is presently an Adjunct Professor of the Department of Electronic

Engineering at the City University.

Dr. C.K. Chan is presently the Chairman of the Industry and
Technology Committee of the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce. He has received many awards which include the EDN
Asia Innovator in 1996 and IEEE Third Millennium Award in 2000

for his outstanding achievement and contributions.

Dr. C.K. Chan obtained both his bachelor and master degrees of
science in electrical engineering from The University of California,
Los Angeles. He received his PhD degree in electronics from The

Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Dr. Ma Chi Kit, aged 39, is a founder and the Chief Marketing
Officer of the Group. He has extensive knowledge on digital signal
processing and telecommunications technologies. He is presently
responsible for formulation and implementation of marketing
strategies, product pricing and positioning, and strategic management

of channel distribution for the Group.

Dr. Ma obtained his bachelor’s degree with first class honours

and a PhD degree in electronic engineering from the City University.

Mr. Ho Ka Ho, aged 35, is a founder and the Engineering Director
of the Group. He is in charge of the engineering department of the
Group and is responsible for product design, quality control, research
and development of the Group. Mr. Ho has expertise in computer

architecture, software engineering and digital signal processing.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EEREREEAEH

Mr. Ho obtained his bachelor of engineering degree in computer
engineering with first class honours and master of science degree in

electronic engineering from the City University.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat, aged 49, is a founder and a research and
development consultant of the Group, responsible for spearheading
the research and development team on a part-time basis with
particular focus on product design and development. Dr. C.F. Chan
is a research veteran in the digital signal processing and speech

compression technology.

Dr. C.F. Chan is presently an associate professor of the
Department of Electronic Engineering at the City University. He is
also a director of Signal Communications Holdings Limited and
Signal Communications Limited, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries

of the Company.

In 1998, he was named “EDN Asia Innovator” by the EDN Asia

Magazine for his contribution in speech compression technology.

He received all his bachelor, master and PhD degrees in electronic

engineering from The University of Essex, England.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Siu Wan Chi, aged 57, is an independent non-executive
Director who was appointed in September 2000. He is presently
Chair Professor of the Department of Electronic and Information
Engineering and Director of the Centre for Signal Processing, The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was the Head of the same
department and Dean of Engineering Faculty between 1994 and
2002.

Prof. Siu has held numerous public offices in the academic field
including member of editorial board of renowned journals in the
U.S. and the PRC, general chair of world-class international
conferences, and chairman of academic/professional assessment
panels. Prof. Siu obtained his master of philosophy degree from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, and the PhD degree from Imperial
College of Science, Technology and Medicine, University of London,
UK.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EEREREZEAEHE

Mr. Yu Hon To, David, aged 59, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company who was appointed in January 2007. Mr.
Yu is a founder and director of Management Capital Limited, which
specialises in direct investment and financial advisory activities. He
also sits on the boards of several other listed and private companies
in Hong Kong. He was formerly a partner of an international
accounting firm with extensive experience in corporate finance. Mr.
Yu is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and an associate member of the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Professor Ching Pak Chung, aged 53, is an independent non-
executive Director who was appointed in October 2004. Prof. Ching
is presently Head of Shaw College, Director of the Shun Hing
Institute of Advanced Engineering and Pro-Vice-Chancellor of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong (“CUHK”). He was elected Dean
of Engineering from 1998 till end of 2003. Prof. Ching pursued his
studies at the University of Liverpool of United Kingdom. He received
his bachelor’s degree (first class honors) and doctoral degree in
1977 and 1981 respectively. Then, he continued his research at
School of Electrical Engineering of the University of Bath and was
back to Hong Kong in 1982, when he started teaching at the
Department of Electronic Engineering of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. In 1984, Prof. Ching joined the Department of Electronic
Engineering of CUHK and was promoted to Chair Professor in 1999.

Prof. Ching has all along participated actively in various
professional activities. Besides serving in different capacities for the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (HKIE), and the Institute of
Electrical and Electronic Engineers (IEEE), he was an elected Council
Member of the Institution of Electrical Engineers (IEE) between
2002 and 2005. Prof. Ching also devotes his time on public services.
He was a member of the Consumer Council and Chairman of the
Hong Kong Accreditation Advisory Board, and presently he is a
member of the Electricity Safety Advisory Committee and member

of the Copyright Tribunal.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EEREREEAEH

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Leung Pui Shan, Lydia, aged 36, is the senior marketing
manager of the Group. She has over eleven years of experience in
corporate communications, marketing, promotions and event
management. Prior to joining the Group in September 1998, Ms.
Leung had worked for listed companies in Hong Kong and high-
technology fields. Ms. Leung holds master of science degree in
marketing from the University of Stirling, the UK and master of arts

degree in communication and new media from the City University.

Mr. Lai Siu Chung, aged 39, is the financial controller, qualified
accountant and company secretary of the Group. Mr. Lai is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He is a graduate of the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators. Mr. Lai obtained his bachelor of business
administration degree from La Trobe University, Australia and master
of arts degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lai
had worked in a GEM-listed company immediately prior to joining
the Group in June 2005.

Mr. Lee Chiu Shing, aged 39, is the regional manager of the
Group. He joined the Group in May 1998. He is responsible for
development of the Japanese market for the Group’s products. He
has over thirteen years of working experience in electronics industry,
including stationing as an electronic engineer in Japan for two years.
Mr. Lee is responsible for setting up the operation, staff training,
business development and technical support for the Group’s joint
venture company in Japan. He also takes the position of product
quality assurance manager and is in charge of the quality assurance

activities of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 2T A%

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Code”) takes effect from 1 January
2005. Except for the deviations as disclosed on this report, the
Company has complied with the Code by establishing a formal and
transparent procedures to protect and maximize the interests of

shareholders throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, all directors
confirmed they have complied with the required standard of dealings
and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors

for the year ended 30 June 2007.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director
are set out on the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior

Management” of this annual report.

The Board of directors is responsible for the overall strategic
development of the Group. It also monitors the financial performance
and internal control of the Group’s business operations. Executive
Directors are responsible for running the Group and executing the
strategies adopted by the Board. The Board delegates day-to-day
activities to the management with department heads responsible for
different aspects of the business. Management is required to present
an annual budget and any proposal for major investments and

changes in business strategies for the Board’s approval.

The Non-Executive Directors serve the relevant function of
bringing independent judgment on the development, performance
and risk management of the Group through their contributions in
board meetings. They are also serving on audit committee and
remuneration committee. Through their active participation, they
provide their valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board
and the committees on which they serve so that the management

process can be critically reviewed and controlled.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 2T AHE

In compliance with rule 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
directors and at least one of them has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are

independent.

The Board meets at least four times a year to review the financial
and operating performance of the Company. There were four regular
board meetings held in the financial year ended 30 June 2007. Details

of the attendance of the Board are as follows:

Yy B SF CAZEAR b LRI 255.05(1) & (2)Fk -
RAFEEE =B EHTESR  EPRD
— N B A G S 38 s B8 s R R B S A
B o AN A OB 44 8 S JE AT o AR B R
AR TR B 55 5 001 1 B A 4 AT BH HL 8 ST
B AF BE E R o AN W) R B T A M8 S F AT 2 R R
R AN

HRGERTGFEGHEDINR > g A2 A
B RA S SR R - W E —FFLFEANA=TH
Al B B R S BT U ROGE W E R ek o AR
FEBMEROT

Attended/Eligible to attend

Name of Director HHRA W B
Executive Directors AT E
Dr. Chan Chok Ki A A 1

(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (LR AT B R #) 4/4
Dr. Ma Chi Kit B & £ 4/4
Mr. Ho Ka Ho i R 5 e 4/4
Non-executive Director FEPATHE R
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat R A B 1l L 3/4
Independent Non-executive Directors WorEMATE F
Prof. Siu Wan Chi [LBIRE: &2 4/4
Prof. Ching Pak Chung AN 2% 4/4
Mr. Yu Hon To, David A e

(appointed on 16 January 2007) (O ZFEELAFE—H N HEZE) 2/2
Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki, JP M 18] B A A T A -

(resigned on 28 December 2006) (R ZFENFEA —H 4 /CH FAT) 2/2

During the regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss
and formulate the overall strategies of the Company, review and
monitor the business and financial performances and discuss the
quarterly, half-yearly and annual results, as well as discuss and
decide on other significant matters. The company secretary records
the proceedings of each board meeting by keeping minutes, including
the record of all decisions by the board together with concerns
raised and dissenting views expressed (if any). Draft of board minutes
are circulated to all directors for comment and approval as soon as
practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection at

any reasonable time on request by any director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 2T A%

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1. stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly

established and set out in writing.

At present, Dr. Chan Chok Ki is both the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company who is responsible for managing
the Board and the Group’s business. Dr. Chan has been both the
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company since its
incorporation. The Board considers that Dr. Chan has in-depth
knowledge in the Group’s business and can make appropriate
decisions promptly and efficiently. The combination of the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer can effectively formulate and
implement the Group’s strategies. The Board also consider that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Company as the board of
directors, which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals,
meets regularly to discuss issues affecting the operations of the
Group. The Group considered that, at its present size, there is no
imminent need to segregate the role of chairman and chief executive

officer.

Non-Executive Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Code
Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a causal
vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after their appointment, and every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

At present, the independent non-executive directors are not
appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association. In addition, not every director is subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Directors are subject to
rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company (that at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
directors for the time being or, if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not greater than one-third, shall
retire from office) provided that notwithstanding anything therein,
the chairman of the Board and/or the managing director of the
Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to

retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining the
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number of directors to retire in each year. As such, with the
exception of the chairman, all directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
The Board considers that the continuity of office of the Chairman
provides the Group a strong and consistent leadership and is of
great importance to the smooth operations of the Group. Therefore,
for stability reasons, there is no imminent need to amend the Articles

of Association of the Company.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

No nomination committee was established by the Company.

The Board is mainly responsible for identifying suitable
candidates for members of the Board when there is a vacancy or any
additional director is considered necessary. The Board will review
the qualifications of the relevant candidate for determining the
suitability to the Group on the basis of his qualifications, experience

and background.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is
supported by two board committees. Each committee has its defined
scope of duties and terms of reference and the committee members
are empowered to make decisions on matters within the terms of

reference of each committee.

(1) Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference based upon the guidelines recommended by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the

mandatory provisions set out in the Code.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the
Company’s annual report and financial statements, quarterly reports
and half-yearly report and to provide advice and comment thereon
to the board of directors. The audit committee will also be
responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting
and internal control procedures of the Group. The audit committee
has three members comprising three independent non-executive
directors, namely Professor Siu Wan Chi, Mr. Yu Hon To, David,
and Professor Ching Pak Chung. Mr. Yu Hon To, David, is the

chairman of the audit committee.
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The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results for the year
ended 30 June 2007 have been reviewed by the audit committee. It
has also reviewed the audited financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2007 with management and the Company’s external auditors
and recommended its adoption by the Board. The audit committee
had held four meetings during the current financial year. Individual

attendance of each committee member at these meetings is as follows:

ENLZHECHENAEEEE —TLTLHEANHA
= HORAE R OR KA T K P SR o R
O B A B R AR 8 W] B) AP IS A R A B A
FEHENRA = HILF R RF BRI
EHREFGRN - RAMBAEREAN - EREA®
BIOCRBITNRE & - K Z B G RERZE G &
R (S RN TRV U N

Attended/Eligible to attend

Name of Director WREEAH W HEwmE
Independent Non-executive Directors WAL MATHE E
Prof. Siu Wan Chi [LiBIRE: 2% 4/4
Prof. Ching Pak Chung AR R 2% 4/4
Mr. Yu Hon To, David A E e

(appointed on 16 January 2007) (O ZEELFE—H AN HELE) 2/2
Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki, JP My 1860 B o A KT A

(resigned on 28 December 2006) (O ZEENFEF - H —~+/CHBHT) 2/2

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all audit committee
meetings. In line with practices consistent with board meetings,
draft and final versions of audit committee meeting minutes are
circulated to all members of the audit committee for comments,

approval and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

The members of the audit committee are granted the authority
to full and unlimited access to all books and accounts of the
Company and any employees, consultants and advisers they may,

from time to time, wish to consult.

The main duties of the audit committee are as follows:

e Reviewing, in draft form, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and quarterly reports and providing

advice and comments thereon to the Board. In this regard:

e members of the committee must liaise with the Board,
senior management and the person appointed as the
Company’s qualified accountant and the committee must
meet, at least once a year, with the Company’s auditors;

and

e the committee should consider any significant or unusual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports
and accounts and must give due consideration to any
matters that have been raised by the Company’s qualified

accountant, compliance officer or auditors.

e Reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting

and internal control procedures.
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Other duties of the Audit Committee are set out in specific

terms of reference which is posted on the Group’s website.

(2) Remuneration Committee

According to the Code, the Company has established a
remuneration committee in September 2005 and the primary duties
of the remuneration committee are to formulate and make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all the remuneration of the Directors and Senior
Management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedures for developing policy on such remuneration. The
remuneration committee comprises two Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely, Prof. Siu Wan Chi and Prof. Ching Pak Chung,
and one Non-Executive Director, namely, Dr. Chan Cheung Fat.
The chairman of the committee is Dr. Chan Cheung Fat. It is
scheduled to meet at least once a year and the quorum necessary for

the transaction of business is two.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the
financial year under review. The committee has considered and
reviewed the existing terms of service contracts of the Directors and
considers that the existing terms of the service contracts are fair

and reasonable.

The specific terms of reference of the remuneration committee

is posted on the Group’s website.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the performance of external auditors, the audit fee, and
any question of resignation or dismissal. The external auditors’ fee
is to be negotiated with management of the Company, and annually
analyzed for the audit committee’s review. The audit committee is
also responsible for reviewing the extent of non-audit services

provided by the external auditors in relation to their independence.
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The remuneration in respect of services provided by the external

o

]S

BT LR EEAEAA S H IR

auditors for the year ended 30 June 2007 and 2006 is analysed as BE o AN SO T B 4R IS 60 A B B I 40 AT An
follows: T
For the year ended 30 June
BENA=Z1HIR4EE
2007 2006
—®BLE  CEEAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T T T
Annual audit PERCEE: 3 302 385
Non-audit services I AZ Bk B
— quarterly/interim result review — R ) 2 A R T 50 40
DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL A WY RENEE

STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and in presenting
the quarterly and annual financial statements, and announcements
to shareholders, the Directors aim to present a balanced and

understandable assessment of the Company’s position and prospects.

The Directors’ responsibilities in preparing financial statements
and the auditors’ responsibilities are set out in the Auditors’ Report

on page 29 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal
control periodically to ensure the effective and adequate internal
control system. The Company convened meetings periodically to
discuss financial, operational and risk management control. The
audit committee has discussed the internal control process with the
management of the Company during the financial year ended 30

June 2007.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Board of Directors of the Company believe that good
corporate governance can safeguard the effective allocation of
resources and safeguard shareholders’ interest. The Company will
keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards on a timely
basis and the Board endeavours to take the necessary actions to
ensure compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance

Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company with its shares
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and an associate are set out in

notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2007 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 31.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial

Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 24 to

the financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the share option schemes of the Company are set out

in note 25 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 30 June 2007:

(i) The Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than

24% of the Group’s total turnover.

(i1) The Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers
accounted for 19% and 44%, respectively, of the Group’s
total purchases (not including purchases of items which

are of capital nature).

According to the understanding of the directors, none of the
directors, their associates (within the meaning of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”)) or any shareholders who owned more than
5% of the Company’s share capital had any interest in the Group’s

five largest suppliers.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders as at 30 June 2007 comprised share premium and
retained profits in aggregate amounting to approximately
HK$22,245,000 (2006: HK$20,193,000) provided that, after
distribution, the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall

due in the ordinary course of business.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Dr. Chan Chok Ki
Dr. Ma Chi Kit

Mr. Ho Ka Ho

Non-executive director:

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat

Independent non-executive directors:
Professor Siu Wan Chi
Professor Ching Pak Chung
Mr. Yu Hon To, David
(appointed on 16 January 2007)
Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki, JP
(resigned on 28 December 2006)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Professor Ching Pak Chung will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being

eligible, offers himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Yu Hon To, David, who is appointed by the Board
on 16 January 2007, will retire from office at the forthcoming annual

general meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

The term of office of each non-executive director is the period
up to his retirement or rotation in accordance with the Company’s

Articles of Association.

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of one year commencing 1
April 2001, which will continue thereafter unless and until

terminated by either party by giving six months’ prior written notice.
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Dr. Chan Cheung Fat has entered into a two-year consultancy
agreement with the Company commencing 1 April 2001 under which
he has agreed to act as a research and development consultant to
the Group on a part-time basis. The service period of such agreement
has been extended and will continue unless and until terminated by

either party by giving three months’ prior notice.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment

of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE
OPTIONS

At 30 June 2007, the interests of the directors and their associates
in the shares and share options of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which are required pursuant
to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in shares:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
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(a) Ao W) AR B TEH0.013 5T Z 3 R

Number of Percentage of

issued the issued

ordinary share capital

Name of director Capacity shares held of the Company

A OBT AT B BEAT

HELEH 5y W R H JBe A Ay b

Dr. Chan Chok Ki Held by controlled corporation (note 1) 104,000,000 57.7%
oA L il L w52 22 5 AR A (B EED)

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat Held by controlled corporation (note 1) 104,000,000 57.7%
L L w52 B2 L A (B AL D)

(b) Share options

(b) B

Number of Number of

share underlying
Name of director Capacity options held shares
HELEH g0 A e B H HH B B 4 4 H
Dr. Chan Chok Ki Beneficial owner (note 2) 2,700,000 2,700,000
PR A i 1l B A N (K at2)
Dr. Ma Chi Kit Beneficial owner (note 2) 2,160,000 2,160,000
LSFN L Ham A AN (B 712)
Mr. Ho Ka Ho Beneficial owner (note 2) 2,044,000 2,044,000

fif K e 5 2

A A N (B 7E2)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE
OPTIONS — continued

Notes:

() These shares, representing approximately 57.7% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2007, are held by
Etin City Limited, which is owned by Etin Tech Limited and
CityU Enterprises Limited in the proportion of 70% and 30%,
respectively. Etin Tech Limited is owned by Dr. Chan Chok Ki,
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat, Dr. Ma Chi Kit and Mr. Ho Ka Ho in the
proportion of approximately 44.3%, 34.3%, 14.3% and 7.1%,
respectively. As Dr. Chan Chok Ki and Dr. Chan Cheung Fat are
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more of the
voting power in general meetings of Etin Tech Limited, they are
deemed to be interested in the entire shares in the Company

held by Etin City Limited.

2) The share options are granted to the directors pursuant to the
share option schemes adopted by the Company, details of which

are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, and other than a nominee share in a
subsidiary held by a director in trust for the Group, at 30 June
2007, none of the directors of the Company nor their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes as described in note 25 to
the financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the directors,
their spouses or children under the age of eighteen, had any rights
to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any

such rights during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the related party transaction disclosed in note 30 to
the financial statements, no contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed in the section headed
“Directors’ Interests in Shares and Share Options”, the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO discloses no person as having a notifiable
interest or short position in the issued share capital of the Company

as at 30 June 2007.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are

independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument of the directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance

and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set

out in note 25 to the financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The directors believe that none of the directors nor the
management shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) had an interest in a business, which competes or may

compete with the business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE &%

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee has three members comprising three
independent non-executive directors, namely Professor Siu Wan Chi,

Professor Ching Pak Chung and Mr. Yu Hon To, David.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the
Company’s annual report and financial statements, quarterly reports
and half-yearly report and to provide advice and comment thereon
to the Board of directors. The audit committee will also be
responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting

process and internal control procedures of the Group.

The audit committee has reviewed the draft of this report and

has provided advice and comments thereon.

The audit committee held four meetings during the year ended
30 June 2007.

AUDITORS

On 7 December 2006, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned
as the auditors of the Company and Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng were appointed on 7 December 2006 by the Directors to fill

the casual vacancy so arising.

The accompanying financial statements have been audited by
Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng. A resolution will be submitted
to the annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 12 September 2007
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT BB S

B H# & # & F % 5

Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TELEEYE HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TeleEye
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 31 to 79, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 30 June 2007,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial

statements are [ree from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT BB S

Auditors’ responsibility — continued

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 30 June 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 12 September 2007
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT E£48lka®

For the year ended 30 June 2007 B#ZE =TT +tFA=+HILFE

2007 2006
—EELE  RBAR
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
it 7 T#T T T
Revenue e A 46,635 37,356
Cost of sales S B R AR (24,961) (19,565)
Gross profit £ Fl 21,674 17,791
Other income HoAb g A 7 573 874
Distribution costs o3 88 AR (9,353) (8,562)
Administrative expenses 17 (6,644) (6,492)
Research and development expenditure W 7% J% %% & 32 i (4,104) (3,820)
Profit/(loss) for the year SRR M (B 1R) 8 2,146 (209)
Attributable to: LR At AL

Equity holders of the Company ENNECIE G E RSN 2,087 (273)
Minority interests D B R RE 45 59 64
2,146 (209)

Earnings/(loss) per share BRZEA S ()
— Basic and diluted — B R 11 1.16 centsfll] (0.15) centsfll
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET a3 EaES:

At 30 June 2007 R=—ZZt+EXA=+H

2007 2006
SRBLE B EAE
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
i 7t T T 7T
Non-current assets IE i W &
Property, plant and equipment L/ EN & 12 650 700
Capitalised development costs RN A K AL 13 1,447 1,599
Interest in an associate T M A s T 22 A 15 - -
Available-for-sale investments CIRE R 16 4,305 3,780
6,402 6,079
Current assets i B &
Inventories T & 17 10,964 8,775
Trade and other receivables R W e 2 S L At JRE Wi 3k 18 6,565 5,847
Amount due from an associate JRE Wi B 5 N W 2 KA 19 14 63
Bank balances and cash SRAT & KB 4& 20 11,726 13,354
29,269 28,039
Current liabilities Ui ) & K
Trade and other payables JRE S AR K B Al B A K 21 3,898 4,768
Amounts due to minority shareholders A 2D # i B 3k JH 22 502 474
Amounts due to directors JE A} #E =R 3K IE 23 - 92
4,400 5,334
Net current assets i B & A 24,869 22,705
Net assets O 31,271 28,784
Capital and reserves A T it
Share capital i@z 24 1,802 1,800
Reserves Tt 29,681 27,232
Equity attributable to equity holders AN T RE i A N AL
of the Company 2 HE 4 31,483 29,032
Minority interests D B SR RE £ (212) (248)
Total equity HARE 45 31,271 28,784

The consolidated financial statements on pages 31 to 79 were HBETORZ G AMBHREREHGR _FF L
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 VA T H R UE RARBETIED > 3 i 5 AR

September 2007 and are signed on its behalf by: RERGEE
DR. CHAN CHOK KI Bt fi 2 i + MR. HO KA HO f] 5% 5% Ja 2k
DIRECTOR # 2 DIRECTOR # 2
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BALANCE SHEET B EaE%

At 30 June 2007 R=—ZZt+&EXA=+H

2007 2006
—®BLE  SBEAF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
it 7 T#T T oT

Non-current asset I i B &
Investment in a subsidiary B A W 2 14 10 10

Current assets i B =
Other receivables HC Al 7 Wi K 71 67
Amounts due from subsidiaries R WAL o & N ) K IE 23 20,553 17,184
Bank balances SRAT 4% iR 20 4,018 5,536
24,642 22,787
Current liabilities Ui ) B AR

Other payables Al JRE A 605 712
Amounts due to directors JHE £} 2 =5 3K TH 23 - 92
605 804
Net current assets B &= A 24,037 21,983
Net assets & E I AE 24,047 21,993

Capital and reserves A % it
Share capital Je A 24 1,802 1,800
Reserves fitt A 26 22,245 20,193
Total equity HEHE i 24,047 21,993

DR. CHAN CHOK KI B ff 3% i + MR. HO KA HO fif 58 2% 55 2
DIRECTOR # % DIRECTOR # %

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 3k
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY T8 EE8FH X

For the year ended 30 June 2007 B#EZ T +tF X A=+HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

HIA 2 W RE £ R A B A
Investment Retained
Share Share Translation revaluation Special profits/ Minority
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve (deficit) Total interests Total
#¥% fREA h¥
Bk e EXGE  EGRG  RNRE (B&) Mk RS 5t
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Twx  Tix  TEx  Twx  TEx Tz TBx  TEx  T#x
(Note)
(W5E)
At 1 July 2005 WoEZHRELA—H 1,800 21,605 (18) 425 14,990 (9,463) 29,339 (296) 29,043
Exchange differences on R EANER IR
translation of overseas 10 A 2 B B % B
operations - - (67) - - - (67) (16) (83)
Gain on fair value changes AT ik Hi &4 /A {8
of available-for-sale Ll g
investments - - - 318 - - 318 - 318
Net (expense)/income HEEES R
recognised directly (%) /A
in equity - - (67) 318 - - 251 (16) 235
Realisation of revaluation A o
reserve on disposal of %5 ff X
available-for-sale
investments - - - (285) - - (285) - (285)
Loss for the year EEEH - - - - - (036)) n) 64 (209)
Total recognised income/ FRERTERIA
(expense) for the year (B 30) A - - (67) 3 - 036) (307) 48 (259)
At 30 June 2006 WZZEAEAAZTH 1,800 21,605 (89) 458 14,990 (9,736) 29,032 (248) 28,784
Exchange differences on BEEINER L IRH
translation of overseas T A 2 B B % B
operations - - (196) - - - (196) (23) (219)
Gain on fair value changes Al it 5 4 0 -
of available-for-sale 284
investments - - - 525 - - 525 - 525
Net (expense)/income HEEES R
recognised directly (A 3%) /A
in equity - - (196) 525 - - 329 (23) 306
Profit for the year A A - - - - - 2,087 2,087 59 2,146
Total recognised income/ FRERTERRA
(expense) for the year (B30 A% - - (196) 525 - 2,087 2416 36 2,452
Issue of ordinary shares T I 7 8 I 38 1
upon exercise of share T M
options 2 33 - - - - 35 - 35
At 30 June 2007 RoFEELEAA=ZTH 1,802 21,638 (281) 983 14,990 (7,649) 31,483 (212) 31,271
Attributed to an associate: A=Y UNEba 2
At 30 June 2007 and REZZFLER
2006 “ZERNERAZTA - - (99) - - (961)  (1,060) - (1,060)
Note: Mt it -

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
aggregate of the nominal value of share capital of the subsidiaries acquired

pursuant to a group reorganisation in April 2001 and the nominal value of

the share capital issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT S4B ane=®

For the year ended 30 June 2007 B#ZE =TT +tFA=+HILFE

2007 2006
—ERLH ZERELINAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T ot
OPERATING ACTIVITIES o 2
Profit/(loss) for the year EFERA S (EE) 2,146 (209)
Adjustments for: T B IE B AE &R
Amortisation of capitalised development costs BE JR A B A AL 2 5 778 803
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y2E -~ R E K 2 3 413 568
Write down of inventories 17 & Sk 1,276 201
Allowance for loan to an associate T W O E R R A 25 67
Allowance/(recovery of allowance) for SRR HEE 7 (i (] 9 )
bad and doubtful debts 37 (124)
Dividend income PSRN (127) (164)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale B AT R kA
investments — 277)
Interest income B e A (354) (358)
Operating cash flows before movements in KEEEHH I KE
working capital B 4 0 = 4,194 507
Increase in inventories fr & 2 #n (3,465) (2,635)
Increase in trade and other receivables R g B 3R S L A R wli K 354 T (755) (2,349)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from JE U S 455 N ) 2 R IE B
an associate (38 m) 24 (1)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables JE AT B R S G Ath R £) 3Kk
(k) #8m (870) 989
Decrease in amounts due to directors MEAS) 2  aE D (92) =
Cash used in operations JRE A 5848 2E T 2 Bl & (964) (3,489)
Interest received =R IPSS 354 358
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES JE FH I 788 SR 2 Bl 4 A (610) (3,131)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RE R
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale A T AL B AR 1 T A5 R OE
investments - 909
Dividend income received B i B B i A 127 152
Increase in capitalised development costs B LA B AL 1 (626) (741)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment W AW 2E ~ Wk m K s (357) (183)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM (R VW H B EEEZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES Bl 4 5 A (856) 137
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il ¥ S B
Advance from a minority shareholder DR R 2 FGR - 97
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BEAT IR T 45 3ROE 35 -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM U5 H RlE ER 2 Bl A
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 35 97
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH Bl 4 B B 4 25 A W W A
EQUIVALENTS (1,431) (2,897)
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES ON TRANSLATION #3722k Y [ 5t 2% Bf 197) (88)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RAER B 4 KB L5 EY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 13,354 16,339
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RAER B & KB &5 EY
AT END OF THE YEAR, (B SR AT &5 % S Bl 4)
represented by bank balances and cash 11,726 13,354
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HE® =M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding
company is Etin Tech Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information section of the annual

report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of

the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries and an associate are set out in

notes 14 and 15, respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a
number of new standard, amendments and interpretations (the
“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which are either effective
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 December 2005,
1 January 2006, 1 March 2006, 1 May 2006 or 1 June 2006.
The adoption of the new HKFRSs has had no material impact
on how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods are prepared and presented.

Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised
standards, amendment or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of these standards, amendment
or interpretations will have no material impact on the results

and financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MEH®EME
For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #Z—_ZEZE+F A=+ HBILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. JE JH ¥ 39 J &1M& 5T 75 v B 7% ) 5 4 A

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (7 o B 25 i i B 0 ]) —
— continued
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures! TG ERE19E B AKER!
(ERTA)
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs? T Er e B 55 235% (A A2
(KA TT)
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures! B s B 5 i 45 e R B TH - BEEEEE
BT
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments> 7 W s i A e A Keg oy 2
89k
HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and T ([ % B 55 TE ) Fp B B RS A R e (A
Impairment® EHEAE) R
55 10%E
HK({FRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2-Group and Treasury Share T ([ P 5 e it T v B RS i 4k HE HI|
Transactions* mREZEE) B 5258 — 4 [ K A7
1158 JBe1m 28 2 +
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements’ T ([ % B B TE ) M 5 4 5 ME 22 Pk
eBLZAE) @
55 125%
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007 VR CERBELFE—H — HERZ ARG AR
REERK
> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 PR TERIE ] — H Bz 4% B ih 2 4F T
R
> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November ? A BN+ —H — H 8z 5 B h 2 4E
2006 ] A A 5k o
*  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007 tOREREFEZH — H SRR IR A R
REERK
> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008 o R TERERNE— ] — H Bz 4% B ih 2 4F [
R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HE® =M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain

benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of
those interests at the date of the original business combination
and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of
the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an

additional investment to cover the losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M I# &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a

joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance
sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that

associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included
within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed

for impairment as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s

interest in the relevant associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HE® =M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods provided in the normal course of business, net of

discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and

title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in the consolidated income statement in

the year in which the item is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental

expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M I# &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign operation,
in which case, such exchange differences are recognised in
equity in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange

differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is

disposed of.

3.

T EBOR - B

Hh

T A5 {18 3 A TR B ) BB R IR > DA%
T 10 T RE B W LASR B B (A1) AT I 2
Z 128 5y H B FEZR DLAS [ 1 D RE B (R
AL S 0 E RSP EREEI BH) SBk o 7E
FM&HH > DA BN EWIEEA
P A H R HE AR T o DL EE S E
Az AN B B B I B W R E o R E
AR H U A BE 3 P MO o DU S AR R
A LA SR B B JE B R IH B S &
=

B A A5 B W R T Rt R W R IR i
A BE 52 BE > B A TR AR 0 R AE 18 4R R
TRERE - AN B 358 PR A AR 2 R T A S TR
P —w oy < B IE H PR A 2 BE S ZEBR
TERZ UL T - o JH R 58 25 BE R &5 & B85 ik
Z M R o TR IR 4% P (R (B S (B JF
BT BT ARG REE 5 2 BE AL 45 A 0 [H] 4R
o (AP R R G PR R R
WV TH B BT IV Y B 53 28 BEBR A - 7E A% 17 L
o ME S 25 B IS 4 TE M b AR

B AR S R o A SR B AN Y
PR IRASE OB MER I S AN F Y
14 B W (B 7T) - i E U A S s R 4R A
A SF- 3% BE A< 40 B8 - Bk I e 4 7 S0 i R0 K
B WU > AR S H IR HESR -
BT EE A B RE SL 2 BE () > & iR A AR Y
18 57 AR BT o3 (W S ff 4A) o % 55 BEE S0 22 B I
iR HR A A B 85 A 36 5 1 8 BT A AE 4R as o Al

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 3k

£



42

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HE® =M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associate,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow

all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M I# &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Taxation — continued

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt

with in equity.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses
below).

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement when the asset

is derecognised.

Research and development costs
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense

in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated
that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project
will be recovered through future commercial activity. The
resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its
useful life, and carried at cost less subsequent accumulated

amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is charged to income

statement in the period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HE® =M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Intangible assets — continued

Impairment

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts with
their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised

as income immediately.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired (see the accounting policies in respect of impairment

losses for tangible and intangible assets below).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when an entity of the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit

or loss.

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 3k

3.

FEEFEBOR — M
I H E - M

9 {E

i 2R AT (6 1 0 TR K TR AN e A AT
] 5 SR RS L E AT RE B AR (R T A AR AT I
(EL AR AT > bl R T % T i [l < B -
SR FHE E B AT e e R A R IR T E > &
UL TR ER a7 VESE RN T Kot SR K=Y
BE L AHRAEMN -

A 7 9 s P AR 4B [ > IR TR (K
A Tt 2 E A AR 2 R[] S EE o AR 2 R
T (L AN 75 768 208 ik 7 5% 7 AE 2 1 4F BT I I e
R L e 15 Ry D e 8 2 MR T (L o 488 [ 22 Gk
{EL s 18 B IR 8 A W A e

A AR A BR Y SRR AR A B R BN B
FEE P RE B8 AR (R AT BB AR A (LR SCA B
AT K MY WO R R A ' S BUR) -

St TR

AR TR A RS AR — O I
B TEAR G B L AR R e
BE o Rl A AR AN < A B T D 4R T RE 6
LA PR AT RE & o B R R R I e
A7 4 il 2 A 4 B AR OB R 4R 4 4% 0 SR (B
B (B 14 <= il T T < Al R LB A1) B 22 5 2 T
TE ) 4 T w8 WRF A BT A A% < Rl A a4
BT (BT 70 T T RE) B AP AE o HL R
R T W 9% 4R i 4% O SR (B8 (B Y 4 L T
7 B 4 il B AR A0 22 B 2 T S B AE 48 AR R R

27
e ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M I# &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place. The accounting policies

adopted are set out below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, amount due from an associate and bank balances)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in
subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have

been had the impairment not been recognised.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as loans and receivables and
not held for trading purpose. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Any impairment losses
on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not reverse through profit or loss in subsequent periods.
For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring

after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HE® =M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by an entity
of the Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of

financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
amounts due to minority shareholders) are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit

or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or

payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are
measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and

are discounted to present value where the effect is material.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M I# &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For share options granted to employees, the fair value of services
received determined by reference to the fair value of share
options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in

equity (share options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The effect of the change in estimate, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to share options

reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options

reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

For share options granted to suppliers in exchange for goods
or services, they are measured at the fair value of the goods or
services received. The fair values of the goods or services are
recognised as expenses immediately, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognise as assets. Corresponding

adjustments have been made to equity.

For share options granted by the Company which were vested
before 1 January 2005, the fair value of those share options are
not recognised as expenses in accordance with the transitional

provision of HKFRS 2.

Impairment losses (other than goodwill and intangible assets
that are not yet ready for use (see the accounting policies in
respect of goodwill and intangible assets above))

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Impairment losses (other than goodwill and intangible assets
that are not yet ready for use (see the accounting policies in
respect of goodwill and intangible assets above)) — continued
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The critical accounting judgement and key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

discussed below.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis at
each balance sheet date, and makes allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items especially technology solution
system identified that are of minimal resale value due to
technological changes. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such inventory based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions. The Group carries
out an inventory review on a product-by-product basis at the

balance sheet date and makes allowance for obsolete items.

Estimated impairment of capitalised development costs
Determining whether capitalised development costs is impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount determined
by the value in use of the capitalised development costs. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the capitalised
development costs and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The Group carries out an
impairment review assessment on a product-by-product basis
in respect of the capitalised development costs at the balance
sheet date and no impairment is made for the years ended 30
June 2007 and 2006.
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For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - continued
Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and aging
analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability

to make payments, additional allowances may be required.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, trade and other receivables, amount due from
an associate, bank balances, trade and other payables and
amounts due to minority shareholders. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

It is the Group’s policy for each operating entity to operate in
local currencies as far as possible to minimise currency risk.
The Group’s principal businesses are conducted and recorded
in Hong Kong dollars, Great British Pound and US Dollars. No
hedging against foreign currency exposure has been carried

out by the management.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk through
its investment in available-for-sale investments. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio

of investments with different risk profiles.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HE® =M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES — CONTINUED

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 30
June 2007 in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk

is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with

exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations

and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HMEHR &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EER
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for WA R A E N BB i & 2 i B R i T
goods sold, less returns and allowances, to outside customers FEAAG T AN & 5 2 3R 3 S Al 2 3H o
during the year.
In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, R4 A 45 1 2 N T A RS 2 R O 2 o AR A [
the Group has determined that geographical segment by location FE DLV F 2 BT AE H I A3 JE A 2 K B R T
of customers is its primary reporting format. = o
Geographical segment Hi [ 43 H
The Group reports its primary segment information by AEFPDHEEF (HEF EZARAEEE -~ #Hn
geographical location of its customers who are principally e~ HABEEIEI K ~ bR - RO IR ) 2 T
located in Hong Kong, Singapore, other Asian countries, Middle A5 [ 52 OH 2 SR R o [H At ) 4 55
East, Europe and Africa. Others include locations like the D B S5 b [ o DATR Ay bl b 1 ) 4 2
Americas and Australia. Segment information about these i35 2 5y Ak -
geographical markets is presented below:
2007 ZEFLE
Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong ~ Singapore  countries East Europe Africa Others Eliminations Consolidated
KN
B HhY A% R Bl W it ] 4]
HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx T
REVENUE BA
External sales KANAZHE 6,077 5,108 5,616 4976 16,662 5318 2878 - 4663
Inter-segment sales MERZHE - 2,557 415 - 8,098 - - (11,070) -
Total A% 6,077 7,665 6,031 4,976 24,760 5318 1878 (11,070) 46,635
SEGMENT RESULT EES 793 70 573 1,600 3,671 1,670 1,012 158 10,179
Unallocated corporate income RERWATRA 573
Unallocated corporate expenses AUMHAAER
- Administrative and other ~HRAER
expenses (4,502)
— Research and development REV S TS T
expenditure (4,104)
Profit for the year EERA 2,146

Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage mark-

up.

I3 B H] 2 B B R 8 AR I — O LU A
(=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HMEH &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. rEER - M
Geographical segment — continued Mo [ 43 S — A
2007 — continued o e |
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment PAR B 4 & 5 AE [ 81 53 2 4 JHVE E K
assets and segment liabilities, analysed by the geographical ST AR (E 2 73 47 -

location of its customers:

Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong  Singapore ~ countries East Europe Africa Others Consolidated
Kb s
B A s A% R BN FH Kt B4
HK$°000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T T T T T

ASSETS KiE
Segment assets HREE 331 911 683 6] 4,623 90 ) 6,706
Unallocated corporate assets AUA AT EE 28,965
Consolidated total assets LAMEE 35,671
LIABILITIES A
Segment liabilities HMRER 833 395 240 201 945 250 117 3,071
Unallocated corporate liabilities A B4/ ] & i 1329
Consolidated total liabilities GAMmAE 4,400
Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong ~ Singapore  countries East Europe Africa Others  Corporate Consolidated
REw
e Hhy L TR Bl W kit A 5
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
T#x  TEx  TEx  TEx TEx  T#x  TEx TEx T#x
OTHER INFORMATION Khgn
Capital additions KARE - 7 - - 235 - - 115 357
Depreciation ik - 7 pi] - 19 - - 329 413
Development costs capitalised BREMAEAL - - - - - - - 626 626
Allowance for inventories TRl - - 20 - - - - 1,066 1,276
Allowance for loan to ATBREAFN
an associate BBl - - 25 - - - - - 25
Amortisation of capitalised BRMAEA(L
development costs ZEH - - - - - - - 178 178
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MEH®EME

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. P ER -
Geographical segment — continued H [ 43—
2006 ZEFEAE
Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong ~ Singapore  countries East Europe Africa Others  Eliminations Consolidated
A

Bk P4 R B HH i 5 e
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000
fiér  fEx  Tkx  TEx  TEx  TéEx TEx  FEx  TEx

REVENUE BA
External sales KANAZHE 5,935 4338 4911 4755 10905 1,935 4511 - 3136
Inter-segment sales MR HE - 2455 160 - 7,886 - - (10,501) -
Total 4% 5,935 6,793 5,071 4,755 18,791 1,935 4,517 (10,501) 37,356
SEGMENT RESULT EET 2,246 136 960 L7 953 650 908 1) 143
Unallocated corporate income RE A AA 874
Unallocated corporate expenses RURWARER
- Administrative and other ~ R E
expenses (4,716)
- Research and development REV S S T
expenditure (3,820)
Loss for the year L34 (209)
Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage mark- G JE T 22 88 B T2 4% AR I B — 4y BE iR 1
up. oo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HE® =M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

oy BE R — M

Geographical segment — continued Hi [ 4 B —
2006 — continued TRBNE - M
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment PATR B 42 % 5 76 [ &) 43 2 o0 S8 8 7 Ay
assets and segment liabilities, analysed by the geographical BAMMZARAE Z 547
location of its customers:
Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong  Singapore countries East Europe Africa Others  Consolidated
H AT
i MR A% ik B al Hit Ga
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T T Tt T T Tt T T
ASSETS KiE
Segment assets HEERE 138 1332 1,031 p)) 3,604 1 - 6,228
Unallocated corporate assets AB AT EE 27,890
Consolidated total assets GABERE 34,118
LIABILITIES fifk
Segment liabilities HMREH 1,528 764 168 3N 696 16 161 3,705
Unallocated corporate liabilities FE WA AR 1,629
Consolidated total liabilities BAMAR 5,334
Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong  Singapore countries East Europe Alrica Others  Corporate Consolidated
R
g W iF R B H # N G&
HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000
T#x  TEx  TEx  TEx Tz TEx TEx TEx TEx
OTHER INFORMATION KxH
Capital additions EAGE - 1 9 - 20 - - 142 183
Depreciation ik - ) 66 - 7 - - 47 568
Development costs capitalised BRERAEAL - - - - - - - 741 741
Allowance for inventories FE R = = = = = = = 201 201
Allowance for loan to ATBREAFAY
an associate e = = 67 = = = = - 67
Amortisation of capitalised BRAAEAL
development costs b = = = - - - - 803 803

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment

assets, and additions to property, plant and equipment and

capitalised development costs analysed by the geographical area

in which the assets are located.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HMEHR &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. rEER - M
Additions to
property, plant
and equipment
Carrying amounts and capitalised
of segment assets development costs
L/E BN Y& d ]
B 5% J A AL
43 SR = MR T Z I E
2007 2006 2007 2006

SRFLE CEEAE CRFLE CFEAT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T#e  T#w  Twt TG

Hong Kong T 28,347 25,907 741 883
Singapore ST 3% 1,528 1,841 7 12
Other Asian countries HAth 55 P B 5 458 758 - 9
Europe R P 5,338 5,612 235 20
35,671 34,118 983 924
Business segments EX ]
The Group is solely engaged in research and development and A 45 ) LA A B B 4R R St 2 WF T R B R -
sales and marketing of audio and video monitoring systems. S K TH G o BRI AN SR B 2 B IR
No further business segment information is presented as all of MEEBLERECMARELR 78 B
the Group’s revenue, operating results and assets were i 52 51 At SEFS 4y JHE R -

attributable to this business segment.

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HABWA
2007 2006
SRRLE SBEAE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#T T TT
Other income is analysed as follows: HAb W A Z 43 B a0 T

Interest income from TR AT EEZ A Bl A
— bank deposits — SRAT A7 K 351 354
— loan to an associate — 4 T HE AR 2 AR 3 4

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale B AR R I A
investments - 277
Dividend income from listed equity securities = 7 ## z P &8 Z5 19 B B Uk A 127 164
Others HAth 92 75
573 874
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HE® =M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

8. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 8. Fu O #H)
2007 2006
SR LE  SEEAE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T# T
Profit/(loss) for the year has been arrived at FERERA S (R BN
after charging/(crediting): (FFA) -
Employee benefits expense (including & B A& A1) B 5 (62 45 3 25 M <)

directors’ remuneration)

Salaries, wages and other benefits B4 - L& K H A g A 12,595 12,000
Retirement benefits scheme B R AE A w4 R
contributions 599 601
13,194 12,601
Less: Amount capitalised as development 7R~ N o | K (2 9 N
costs Z K (626) (741)
12,568 11,860
Allowance/(recovery of allowance) for SRR Ol [ 43 )
bad and doubtful debts 37 (124)
Allowance for loan to an associate T WRE A R B R A 25 67
Write down of inventories 17 B o 1,276 201
Amortisation of capitalised development B R A G A AL 2 HESY
costs included in research and (2 5 AW 7% B 3% e 3 i)
development expenditure 778 803
Auditors’ remuneration 72 BT M <5 302 385
Net foreign exchange gains A W TR 5 i 25 1 AE (728) (583)
Depreciation of property, plant and W BB KR e
equipment 413 568
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HMEHR &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 9. HHENEEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 8 (2006: 7) CATEERT 8% (ZFFNF  74) EHSH
directors were as follows: HY P <8 40 R
2007 —ERF LA
Professor Professor
Dr. Chan Dr. Ma Mr.Ho  Dr. Chan Siu Mr. Yeung Ching  Mr. Yu Hon
Chok Ki Chi Kit KaHo CheungFat ~ WanChi ~ KwokKi Pak Chung  To, David Total
RfEEL BHBEL WREERE REREL EARKR BENEE RRAPEE mEAEE bk
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx
(Note (i) (Note (ii))
(Wt i) (i o )
Fees i - - - - 60 30 60 i) 178
Other emoluments YRS
Salaries and other benefits EEA S U 2,084 ™ 650 187 - - - - 3,645
Contributions to retirement SRIRFAI R B
benefit schemes 12 12 12 - - - - - 36
Total emoluments A4 2,096 736 662 187 60 30 60 28 3,859
Notes (i): Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki resigned as independent non-executive FfsE G) @ R AER FEZNRFE A A

director of the Company on 28 December 2006.

(ii): Mr. Yu Hon To, David was appointed as independent non-

executive director of the Company on 16 January 2007.

H BT A~ al B oL JE AT -

Gi) : AT SR AR R EEE A FNHE
TAL AN R B S R RATE S -

2006 ZRENG
Professor Professor
Dr. Chan Dr. Ma Mr.Ho  Dr. Chan Siu Mr. Yeung Ching
Chok Ki Chi Kit KaHo CheungFat ~ Wan Chi Kwok Ki ~ Pak Chung Total
BT BEMREL MAZEE BHENL BARAR GEEEE BATUAR A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T T T T T T Tk T
Fees (U6 - - - - 60 60 60 180
Other emoluments H A &
Salaries and other benefits B R 2,004 720 616 187 - - - 3,527
Contributions to retirement R R AT B 4l 5
benefit schemes 12 12 12 - - - - 36
Total emoluments bk 2,016 732 628 187 60 60 60 3,743
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HE® =M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

9.

10.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

— continued

The five highest paid individuals included three (2006: three)
directors of the Company, details of whose emoluments are set
out above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2006: two)
individuals, which fall within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000
for each of the two years ended 30 June 2007 and 2006, were

as follows:

O e H A — A

EAMVMEREHNALS > BREAAFZ =
PL (SR ENAE © =) BEH > OF L WA
A BTN o HERM A (SRR - W
1) NEREE —FTLE R - FTNENA
=+ HIEWAEEES AN N TESR
1,000,000%5 76 > #E1E 41T -

2007 2006

SRBLE SEEAF

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt Tt

Salaries and other benefits 3 4 e At 5 A 1,238 1,126
Retirement benefits scheme contributions AR NS 1 R 139 127
1,377 1,253

During each of the two years ended 30 June 2007 and 2006, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including directors, as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
In addition, no director waived any emoluments during the

years ended 30 June 2007 and 2006.

TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 17.5% (2006:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. No tax is payable on profit for the years ended
30 June 2007 and 2006 arising in Hong Kong since the
assessable profits are wholly absorbed by tax losses brought

forward.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HMEHR &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

10. TAXATION - continued 10. BiJE — 4§
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) AN AR B 2 B TE B A A A IR g8 3R R0 AR UG
for the year in the consolidated income statement as follows: H 7 (EiR) 2 #HEMT :
2007 2006
SRRLE SEBEAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tl
Profit/(loss) for the year EE R M (G 1R) 2,146 (209)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate i 7 b T 15 BLBE 2 17.5%
of 17.5% GIRCR R 375 37
Tax effect of expenses that are not AN BT 0B B ST 2 BT R
deductible for tax purposes 288 216
Tax effect of income that is not taxable B ZEH BB U 2 Bl R 2
for tax purposes (381) (88)
Utilisation of tax loss not previously B FT 4 1 1 oA Al RR 2 B TE I 18
recognised (446) (272)
Tax effect of deferred tax assets not I TifE 5 A HIE ol VE T B 2 B A
recognised B 164 181
Taxation for the year A A 22 B IE - =
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 27. I HE B TE I RO B RE27 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HMEH &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

11.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company

is based on the following data:

11.

R O #H)
AR ) W 3 P A AT N BEAG g B SR AR I fi
WA (k4R Ty R LT SRR E

2007 2006
ZERELE —EFENE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#T T# T
Earnings/(loss) i A, Ol 82)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable A4S BME 35 A N EAG
to equity holders of the Company WA (5 R) 2,087 (273)
Number of shares J& 13 BB
Weighted average number of ordinary TS R A B R (s 18)
shares for the purpose of basic 23 98 B 0 RE T 25
earnings/(loss) per share 180,007 180,000

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 30 June
2007 and 2006 have not been disclosed, as the share options
outstanding during these years had an anti-dilutive effect on

the basic earnings/(loss) per share for these years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HMEHR &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. W3 - W el

Furniture
Leasehold and Office Motor
improvements fixtures  equipment vehicle Total
LiNEEYES AR K WA
15 HE B FH o
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T Tt ot T o0
THE GROUP N YL
COST A
At 1 July 2005 hoERREELH—H 467 431 2,619 243 3,760
Exchange adjustments EE 51, 77 % 2 1 17 - 20
Additions NE = 13 170 - 183
Disposals HE - - (10) - (10)
At 30 June 2006 W ZFRREAH=1H 469 445 2,796 243 3,953
Exchange adjustments BEE 51, 7 4 4 2 32 - 38
Additions NE = = 357 - 357
Disposals HE = = (12) - (12)
At 30 June 2007 WZFRLEAH=1H 473 447 3,173 243 4336
DEPRECIATION g
At 1 July 2005 AFERFELH—H 302 339 2,019 20 2,680
Exchange adjustments T 50, 3 2 - 13 - 15
Provided for the year A JE SR 144 45 298 81 568
Disposals e - - (10) = (10)
At 30 June 2006 WEFRARNEAH=1H 448 384 2,320 101 3,253
Exchange adjustments EE 51, 7 % 4 1 27 - 32
Provided for the year AR T R 21 32 279 81 413
Disposals HE - - (12) - (12)
At 30 June 2007 WoFLELEAH=1H 473 417 2,614 182 3,686
CARRYING AMOUNTS H T
At 30 June 2007 WFRLEAH=1H = 30 559 61 650
At 30 June 2006 WoEEREANA=ZTH 21 61 476 142 700

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 3k



62

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HE® =M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

12.

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued 12. W% ~ WE Mot — 5
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the above LR S RS T E B T R SEE Ik
items of property, plant and equipment, over their estimated & DL B SR i A TR R AR A R R R
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated At 55T 8 5% 16 (L B BB L R A > SRR -
residual value using the straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:
Leasehold improvements 33'/3% or over the lease term, TH W) 2218 33'/5% 5 AH 15
whichever is shorter (DA 5 3 1y e )

Furniture and fixtures 20% 1L B 2 20%
Office equipment 20% — 33'/3% N i 20% — 33'/5%
Motor vehicle 331/3% R 331/5%
CAPITALISED DEVELOPMENT COSTS 13. BRI A K AL

HK$’000

T T

THE GROUP AR H
COST Bk A
At 1 July 2005 o EEHEELH —H 7,215
Additions nE 741
At 30 June 2006 W EERFESNH=ZTH 7,956
Additions n~E 626
At 30 June 2007 A EEELFEANH=TH 8,582
AMORTISATION Hit &
At 1 July 2005 A EEHFELH—H 5,554
Provided for the year A AR SR 803
At 30 June 2006 A ZEEFENRNFESNH=ZTH 6,357
Provided for the year A AR EHR 778
At 30 June 2007 W EELFESNH=TH 7,135
CARRYING AMOUNTS SR T fE
At 30 June 2007 W EEZLFESNH=ZTH 1,447
At 30 June 2006 A ZEENFANH=ZTH 1,599

Development costs recognised as an asset are amortised using
the straight-line method over three years from the date it is

available for use.

The directors reviewed the carrying value of the capitalised
development cost at the balance sheet dates with reference to
the discounted future cash flows from the product developed.
They determined that no impairment loss should be made at

30 June 2007 and 2006.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MEH®EME
For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #Z—_ZEZE+F A=+ HBILEE

14. JA K 2 7 Z £ ¥
The Company

14. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY

PN
2007 2006
—®BLE  CEENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#T T# T
Unlisted investment, at cost JE R E > A 10 10

MoERELEANA=Z+HH AR FWME A

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 30 June 2007 were

as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operation

Issued and fully
paid up ordinary
share capital/

registered capital

Z T

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital/

registered capital

held by the Company

Principal activities

HAAR A Z
OB AT R s e CBATRA
Wl AR SL R W B A Rk B A 2
it Jeg 2 ] 44 T #8552 RN THi {E 4y b FEERE
Directly  Indirectly
Hi% LiEES
% %
Signal Communications BVI HK$15,000,000 100 — Investment holding
Holdings Limited L i R 15,000,000%5 JG & P
SiCOM China Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
I Jo i L 170 BeE
SiCOM Europe Limited BVI US$1 - 100  Investment holding
e Jo i B 150 BE
SiCOM Far East Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
T Jo i B 1370 BE 5
SiCOM Japan Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
e Ja i B 1% BeE
Signal Communications Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100  Research and
Limited i 1,000% T development and
Al WF 52 A R A sales and marketing
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HE® =M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

14. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY - continued

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Name of subsidiary and operation

Issued and fully
paid up ordinary
share capital/

registered capital

14. JAMHE A 2 3B& — 4

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital/
registered capital

held by the Company

Principal activities

HA A H A Z
BB AT R CBITHRA
LM S RE W e S A Wl il A 2
Pt Jeg 2 ] 44 W P 5845 b B Rl i A THi {E 4y B e ¥/
Directly  Indirectly
HZ fi %
% %
TeleEye Europe Limited The United GBP100 - 90  Sales and marketing
Kingdom 1003k §% of audio and video
E3 monitoring systems
MR RGZ
B B i 35 4 i
TeleEye (S) Pte Limited Republic of S$1,000 - 51  Sales and marketing
Singapore 1,000 /1l 4% 7¢ of audio and video
B 4 monitoring systems
M RERGZ
§ B B i 35 4 i
TeleEye Solutions Limited Hong Kong HK$10 - 100 Inactive
THRIRMEERSAARAA s 10% 7 Wk
T B AR S BB (I The People’s US$130,000 = 100  Production, sales
£ BR A A (Note) (M 7F) Republic 130,000 JC and marketing
of China of audio and video
(the “PRC”) monitoring systems
M EE A R A REHEER G
([ ]) B3 e S & K
T3 355 4 Ji

Note:

owned enterprise.

The Company is registered in the form of a wholly foreign

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HMEHR &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

15. JAWE 2wl Z W a8

The Group
N

2007 2006
—EELE SRR
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#T T T
Cost of investment in an associate Tt 4 2N W] B & AR 1,060 1,060
Share of post-acquisition losses JRE A i I 4% s 4R (1,060) (1,060)

Details of the Group’s associate at 30 June 2007 were as follows:

Name of associate

Particulars of

issued shares held

Place of
incorporation

and operation

REEFELERNA=Z+H  AERBEZHEA
AlREME AT

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital

held by the Group Principal activities

N RS
sk M Bl or 2 C B AT B A THi H
Tk 28 O W] 44 7 BT © B AT B AR wE £ 0 H B JEE/ida B9/
CAMERIO Japan, 294 shares of Japan 49% Sales and marketing
Incorporated Yen 50,000 each H 74 of audio and video

294 % A i T {H
50,000 H

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

associate is set out below:

monitoring systems
BBEREAKZ
B BT b fE i

B A A g s A B MR R 5 AR
T

2007 2006

SRBLE BTN

HK$’000 HK$°000

T#T T T

Total assets M 642 388

Total liabilities FN= (1,301) (1,013)

(659) (625)

Group’s share of net assets of associate A 4% 9] B A e 2 N WD B TR - —

Loss for the year AEJE (72) (219)
Group’s share of results of associate A 4 9] A W 7 2 R Y

for the year A B 3E AR - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HMEH &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE - continued
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of results
of the associate because the accumulated share of post-
acquisition losses equals the cost of investment in the associate.
The amount of unrecognised share of the associate, extracted
from the relevant management accounts of the associate, both

for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

15. JAME 2wl Z M4 — A
EH T 228 A i 4 s TR 45 S T A 4 D
BRA - PR SR [ A5 1k e R R AL A B
BN A SRR o AR N B B e RBME A T A
Fl R (BB B R R A BB LR B 0
o

2007 2006
LS ZERELINAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T IC
Unrecognised share of loss of associate R THE 8 F) B A1 B D AT s 1R
for the year (35) (107)
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses 2R it B A o N W) s R
of associate (280) (245)
16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 16. "] fit i B/ E
The Group
N
2007 2006
ZRELS LN
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T oT
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong Ei Sl W i o 4,305 3,780

At the balance sheet date, all available-for-sale investments are
stated at fair value. Fair values of those investments have been

determined by reference to bid prices quoted in active markets.

RS H o BT A R B SR B LA PR
FIMR o % BE N A VEETI SRS
T ) B T E

17. INVENTORIES 17. # &
The Group
AR H

2007 2006
e e S ZREBINAE
HK$°000 HK$000
T T oo
Raw materials Ji R 3,362 3,175
Finished goods B 7,602 5,600
10,964 8,775
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NoOTES 70 THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS HMEREMHE

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. JE W B K B M Al JE WALk
The Group
PN
2007 2006
ZRELS ZETNA
HK$’000 HK$°000
F oo Tt
Trade receivables R e B K 4,482 4.120
Less: accumulated allowances D i (103) (66)
4,379 40541
Other receivables H At 8 iz 2K 2,186 1,793
Total trade and other receivables JE Wi B R e L Ath JE W B R 6,565 5,847

The Group allows credit period of 30 days to some of its trade
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
at the balance sheet date prepared on the basis of payment due

date of sales invoice:

AEMGT LESEF =+ HZEEH -
WA &6 B H e 8 8 BE R 2 B IS R H B AR
AT EAT R AR B AT A T

The Group
N
2007 2006
SRBLE  CFBAE
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#T TH# T
Current B 1A 457 3k
(including less than 1 month overdue) (45 7 A R 20 148 H ) 3,318 2,495
1 to 3 months overdue 1% 308 H 897 1,108
More than 3 months 7 101 R A 3 164 451
4,379 4,054

The fair value of the Group’s trade and other receivables at 30

June 2007 approximates the carrying amount.

REELENA SR A B R K
e A M5 5 (L SRR T (4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HE® =M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

19.

20.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 19. MW 2 2 W) Z K IR
The Group
NS
2007 2006
ZREFLE ZEFNEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T-# 0 T T
Loan account B IR I - 25
Trade account H 7 Wk IH 14 38
14 63
The loan account is unsecured, bears interest at 1% per annum L RIR TE 2 A AT - AR B A 19% B ZH i oK M
and is repayable on demand. The trade account is unsecured, P o B 5 MRIE o MRS AT - AS B A B B AR 4
non-interest bearing and the Group allows an average credit ) o 8 5 T AR T A ) 2 S B A 445
period of 45 days for sales made to the associate. The trade H - R&HHZE S REREAN P4 EEH
account at the balance sheet date are aged within the credit e = (NI
period granted by Group.
The fair value of the Group’s amount due from an associate at R ZFBBELENRT = H o AL OR
30 June 2007 approximates the carrying amount. 4 A B RO TR N ST 18 B AR TR (B AH 27 o
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20. SRAT A5 AR LBl E

Bank balances and cash comprises cash and short-term bank
deposits held by the Group and the Company with an original
maturity of three months or less. The deposits carry fixed
interest rate from 4.7% to 4.8% (2006: 4.6%). The fair values
of the Group’s and the Company’s bank balances approximate

the carrying amounts.
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21.

22.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HMEHR &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21.

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
HK$723,000 (2006: HK$1,440,000). The following is an aged
analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date prepared

on the basis of payment due date of supplier’s invoice:

JRE AT iR R B A R ASh R 6L FE E A B 5 R K
723,000 70 (= FE IS ¢ 1,440,000% 0) ©
T A S H A R 2 B AT B H 2
e ST 2 A AR IR B A AT An R

The Group
A £
2007 2006
SRBLE BTN
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T T
Current HIEGEREN
(including less than 1 month overdue) (G048 7@ A AR 2 148 ) 619 643
1 to 3 months overdue a1 3 H 104 298
More than 3 months but less than 781 A e A 3| A {HAE 1248 H BA I
12 months overdue - 499
723 1,440

The fair value of the Group’s trade and other payables at 30

June 2007 approximates the carrying amount.

AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS 22.

The Group
The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are

repayable on demand.

The fair value of the Group’s amounts due to minority

shareholders at 30 June 2007 approximates the carrying amount.

R EELFENA=H - AL E R IRRK
T At B A 3K A9 2% F- (B B R T (ELAR 7 -

A4

% AR S AN B R B B 2 e K T
i -

REELFEANA=Z+H - AEEEN D
IS SR T #) 2 ~F-8 (E BEL IR T (A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HMEH &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES/DIRECTORS
The Group and the Company
The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are

repayable on demand.

The fair value of the Company’s amounts due from subsidiaries

at 30 June 2007 approximates the carrying amount.

24. SHARE CAPITAL

23. HEW (REAT) BB A W] 98 kR

A 4R R A
% AR SR AN B R B R ZH e SR
2 -

% =4 H o AL E R
ARV PAS S =Ry SR IER P

24. JBA
Number of shares Share capital
JBe 4y 8 H Je A
2007 2006 2007 2006

L ZEEANE ZRBHE ZEEANE

HK$’000 HK$’000
TwE T

Authorised: e RA
Ordinary shares of 4 1B TE (B 0.01% T
HK$0.01 each Z 85 800,000,000 800,000,000 8,000 8,000
Issued and fully paid: AT KR IR
At beginning of year Y] 180,000,000 180,000,000 1,800 1,800
Exercise of share options A7 A1 B e HE 240,000 - 2 =
At end of year R 180,240,000 180,000,000 1,802 1,800
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M I# &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

25. i JB M 5t

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

1

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Scheme”)

The Pre-IPO Scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 12 April 2001 to recognise the contribution of
executive directors and employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries to the growth of the Group. The options
granted under the scheme grant the right to the holder to
subscribe for new ordinary shares of the Company at
HK$0.60 per ordinary share and the maximum number of
shares in respect of which options might be granted under
the scheme was 14,400,000. The number of shares in
respect of which options might be granted to any individual

was not permitted to exceed 3,600,000.

Options might be granted without any initial payment.
Options granted are exercisable to the extent of an
aggregate total of 25%, 50%, 75% and 100% at anytime
after 6 months, 18 months, 30 months and 42 months,
respectively, from the commencement of the trading of
the shares of the Company on the GEM, and have a

duration of 10 years from their respective vesting dates.

Upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM on
8 May 2001, no further options could be granted by the
Company under the Pre-IPO Scheme. The rights of the
holders of the share options granted prior thereto are not
affected and such options granted continue to remain valid
and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the

scheme.

(i)

8 B T M e RE St 3 (T 4R B R N B BE St
#1)

AN FERER —FE—FMNA - HE
Wz — TH Pk 5 BR AN 8 I I % ORE St
B > LB A ) R L N w2 AT
W NEEHAREEZ LI EL Z ']
BT LA E o RIEET 8RR T REA
N HE ) AT 2 45 8 3K 78 % 0.6 0% T 78 A
I8 F] 28 o T AR PR R B AT T
ZHBRHEY Rz hkEm BB E S
14,400,000/ o "] 4% T A AT A £ 2 I Ik
TE 2 B 1 B H AS W] 33,600,000 ©

Wi 8 A 7 517 R S A AT AT A7) 26 3k JE 2 1
AR T A% o W R RE A AR A T % £
A ZE A BH 4h B AR o W] 4 BIAE S R
A~ FA\A - =AW+ = A
Z A5 Z AT RE A > B R AT M A 3 AS
W B RE A8 BH Z 25% > 50% ° 75% MK
100% ° %55 i JBOHE |1 4% 3 rI AT 2 H
FE e e SN Sy

HBAARRGR ZFE—FHA/N\HE
Al et BT AR o AR 4 I AT A R
B> AR F AT PR L CRE o T AE
L DA AR 0 IR 2 e A\ i A 2
i AN BB R > MR PR T # Z RKZ
S5 TR 2 0 IBERE S A7 R A It mT T LA
174 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HE® =M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 25. Jif BB Gt B — A
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Scheme”) () 8B i B RE ) (T 48 B m R R RE ST
— continued # 1) — 4
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s TRBEENBE - TEANFER _FEEL
share options under the Pre-IPO Scheme during the years SRS H = B R AR B R AR A I T
ended 30 June 2006 and 2007: B A 2 R 2 0 B 2 A ) R
Exercise Lapsed Lapsed
price Balance at during Balance at during Balance at
Date of grant per share 1 July 2005 the year 30 June 2006 the year 30 June 2007
REFRLE REZREAE REZFZLE
M tH—H REEN  AA=1H REEN  AA=1H
B0 frfi Z Ktk BRM Z Ktk BRM Z Ktk
HKS$ (Note)
o (Wzt)
Directors of the Company
AnFzES
Dr. Chan Chok Ki 12 April 2001 0.60 1,800,000 - 1,800,000 - 1,800,000
R AF “ZZ-4FNA+ZH
Dr. Ma Chi Kit 12 April 2001 0.60 1,440,000 - 1,440,000 - 1,440,000
BB+ “ZZ-HEWA+ZH
Mr. Ho Ka Ho 12 April 2001 0.60 1,364,000 - 1,364,000 - 1,364,000
(P 32 “ZE-4FENA+ZH
4,604,000 - 4,604,000 - 4,604,000
Employees of 12 April 2001 0.60 3,912,000 (1,856,000) 2,056,000 - 2,056,000
the Group “EEF-ENA+TZH
FEMEER
8,516,000 (1,856,000) 6,660,000 - 6,660,000
No options had been exercised since the date of grant. At B R Sl A R RE AT o iR
30 June 2007, the number of shares in respect of which —EBEEFENH =T H > RIS
options had been granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme JBCHE 55t ) 42ty 22 il s 22 i 3 BB A %
represents 3.7% (2006: 3.7%) of the shares of the Company HIA L 7 28347 B 3.7% (= FEN
in issue at that date. A D 3.7%)
Note: These options lapsed upon the resignation of the grantees. BRSO S I R RE TR AR R N BEAL AR SR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 3k



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ME®REME
For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #Z—_ZEZE+F A=+ HBILEE

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 25. i J M w3 — AR
(ii) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the (i) R-FRZ4TH )\ H SR Z

“2003 Option Scheme”)

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 October 2003, the
2003 Option Scheme was adopted to recognise and
motivate the contribution of the employees and to provide
incentives and help the Company in retaining its existing
employees and recruiting additional employees for a term
of ten years. The board of directors of the Company may
at its discretion grant options to any employees, including
executive and non-executive directors, advisers,
consultants, agents, contractors, customers and suppliers
of the Group to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Option may be granted at a consideration of HK$1 and
should be accepted within 5 business days from the date
of grant. The option granted is exercisable upon acceptance
of and payment of consideration by the grantee and have

a duration of 10 years from their respective vesting dates.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted cannot exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company on 28 October 2003. No
option shall be granted to a grantee if the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
granted and to be granted under the 2003 Option Scheme
in any twelve months period up to and including the date
of grant to such grantee would exceed 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company for the time being in issue.

The subscription price shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Daily Quotation Sheets on the date of grant,
which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the Daily
Quotation Sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal value of a
share. Without prejudice to the generality of the above,
the board of directors of the Company may grant options
in respect of which the subscription price is fixed at

different price.

RERE ) (122 =4 i e bt 1)
REHR —FE=4F+H _+/\H@Hz
R > AN R R A TR A I R
AP E o R DURE RS M M B) IR B AR A R
HERK - AL R BLA R B AT R
JBh > LATH D A BE AR DL R R B AT I
T EZEIMER o AN R EE G AT E
% 1) A AT R B 432 ) i A M (6 465 A 4 [
ZHITEFRIFRTESF - HE - B
]~ AU~ RER - BE RSt RER) DL
o A o W By o T AR T DA 1 ks
TOIR o MR ZE R R H O R A
S H N EA o AE RN A B ST I
RER AR Y - W A RE D7 AT T AAT -
AR A 3 R BB B R R 2 10
4 o

452 T A 2 = e B E > AR
MANFR - FE=ZFETA - FANHZ
E BT RA 2 10% © A 7EAL AT+ —fE A
0] Bz A T R T ORI
(BFEZH) 1L - BEAT R R %
T ZAR I R ST B AR B POl TR 2
B E AT (o IR K T R AT 2 B MR
A AN T R LB AT IR 2 1% > IR
O T AN A T A

RIBEAB VR TI =22 HEE 1)
AN\ ROy IR H W (R BAS H) 7R
15 B A8 = 2 o A8 5 GDAR A A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HE® =M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 25. i JB M w1 — A

(ii) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the (i) REFZ4TH )\ H R Z B
REGHE) ([ BRRESH#]) — 4
TRBEBEBE ZFTARER _FELFE
NA=Z1THIEEENARARRE -FE
= A T B RE T W 2 TR A ) R

“2003 Option Scheme”) — continued

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options under the 2003 Option Scheme during the
years ended 30 June 2006 and 2007:

UK
Exercise Lapsed Exercised
price Balance at during Balance at during Balance at
Date of grant per share 1 July 2005 the year 30 June 2006 the year 30 June 2007
REZZZFhE REZZERE REZZFZLE
tH—H REEN  AAZHH REEN  AAZTH
it FRATHE R BRM 2K CATHE 2 Ktk
HK$ (note)
e ()
Directors of the Company
KA ZESR
Dr. Chan Chok Ki 4 August 2004 0.145 900,000 - 900,000 - 900,000
I A1 2 1 - “EENENANA
Dr. Ma Chi Kit 4 August 2004 0.145 720,000 - 720,000 - 720,000
BB L “EFNEAANA
Mr Ho Ka Ho 4 August 2004 0.145 680,000 - 680,000 - 680,000
(IEL 3 “EEMENANA
2,300,000 - 2,300,000 - 2,300,000
Employees of 4 August 2004 0.145 700,000 (320,000) 380,000 (240,000) 140,000
the Group “EENEANANA
A EE
3,000,000 (320,000) 2,680,000 (240,000) 2,440,000

S T PUAFENH P H (- A R
Z Bl B A A G 2 T E
0.145%7C o A —FXFLHEARNH=+H -
MR 2 A [ JRORE ST B 52 L I A E

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before 4 August 2004 (date of grant of the above options)
was HK$0.145. At 30 June 2007, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted under the 2003

[l

Option Scheme represents 1.4% (2006: 1.5%) of the shares

of the Company in issue at that date.

The 240,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 240,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of HK$2,400 and share
premium of HK$32,400 (before issue expenses), as further

detailed in note 24 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HMEHR &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

(ii) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the
“2003 Option Scheme”) — continued
The weighted average closing price per share immediately
before the date on which the option for 120,000 shares
was exercised (i.e. 20 June 2007) was HK$0.26; and the
weighted average closing price per share immediately
before the date on which the option for 120,000 shares
was exercised (i.e. 21 June 2007) was HK$0.30.

Note:  These options lapsed upon the resignation of the grantees.

25. JifE B RE ST B — A

() A ERZEZ=ZFHHA A )VH RS Z R
REGT 3] ([ R=AF M e std]) — 4
ZH U 120,000 B 2 W IR AEA T H
(R = FE BN H Z+H) iz 88k
i A S 2 T 8 A5 0.26 T 5 T BBV
K 120,000 A& 3 = Wi B HEA T {85 H #9 (Bp
TRELAENA B Az &
HE - 25 Yl T 18 7% 0,305 G »

Wi A5 B R A TR AN B AT AR SRR o

26. RESERVES 26. fiff
Retained
Share profits/
premium (deficit) Total
P 88 i Fl
JB& - AL (s 4t A5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T# T T# T
THE COMPANY A4 ]
At 1 July 2005 AZEEHFELH—H 21,605 961 22,566
Loss for the year 2N AF s 4 - (2,373) (2,373)
At 30 June 2006 AT EBENENH=1+H 21,605 (1,412) 20,193
Issue of ordinary shares upon TAAT A5 i 8 R IR 8 AT A A i
exercise of share options 33 = 33
Profit for the year AN AF FE Y A - 2,019 2,019
At 30 June 2007 W EEFELFESNH=TH 21,638 607 22,245

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 3k

1



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HMEH &M
For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #Z—_ZEZE+F A=+ BILFE

27. € BiIH
NI AEAAEE RO AR AR - CfERE L B
BIEBLIR (B E) /AR LSBT

27. DEFERRED TAXATION
The following are the major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

years:
Accelerated Capitalised
tax development Tax
depreciation costs losses Total
B BRI AR
Vg HARML BB EHE A
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T T# T T ¥ T
THE GROUP A £
At 1 July 2005 W EEHFEELH—H 59 291 (350) =
(Credit)/charge to income statement kg R F (FFA) SR (49) (11) 60 =

At 30 June 2006 and 1 July 2006 R EERNFEANHA=ZTH

M EENRFELH—H 10 280 (290) -
(Credit)/charge to income statement Mz R F GEA) % (10) 27) 37 —
At 30 June 2007 W_FEELHEANA=+H = 253 (253) -

16

At 30 June 2007, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$7,467,000 (2006: HK$8,888,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$1,446,000 (2006: HK$1,658,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to the
remaining unused tax losses of HK$6,021,000 (2006:
HK$7,230,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in the unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$790,000 (2006: HK$643,000) that will expire in 2011
through 2012. The remaining tax losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

At 30 June 2007, the Group has other deductible temporary
differences of HK$108,000 (2006: HK$99,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilised.
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R EEEENA = H > A A
E11 = I N Ol Wl v I S I i =W
7,467,000% & (ZE L N4 ¢ 8,888,000k
JG) o 7R [ i R S e T M R 2 A A A E B
FE £51,446,000% 78 (- FEEN4E ¢ 1,658,000
WI0) o A RAETEFE AR A K A o HOIE HE  fR
T 2 R B B IE I $86,021,000% 00 (%
FINAE 17,230,000 76) e 50 B 1R IE B JE A
EE o ) 2R fifE 5B JH i 15 vh 2 5 1 790,000% 7T
(ZREINAE 1 643,000% 00) 1§ H —F——4F
B TARRIH o RN 2 BUIE SR ] T A
PR 300 6 7R 4 et o

AR E AN S H o A 2 HoAl AT
F0 91T IRF 25 B8 55 108,000 70 (U E T NAE ¢
99,000%570) ° FH A TE AR A FE LB ik A R A
K 85 7T B ) 22 ] 00 I BT I 25 RE o O N A
T AT IR = R e RR R AE B JE R R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M I# &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate in a defined
contribution retirement scheme (“MPF Scheme”) registered
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce contributions payable in

future years.

The employees of the subsidiary in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiary is required to contribute
approximately 8% of the basic salary of its employees to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit

is to make the specified contribution.

In addition to the participation in the above retirement benefit
schemes, the subsidiary in the United Kingdom and the
subsidiary in Singapore are required to contribute, respectively,
to National Insurance Contributions and Central Provident
Fund Scheme for certain of its employees in the United Kingdom
and Singapore based on applicable rates in accordance with the

relevant government regulations.

The total costs charged to income statement of HK$599,000
(2006: HK$601,000) represents contributions payable to these

schemes by the Group in respect of current accounting period.

28. JB Ik AE A 5t

A A v B R 2 ) 22 BEL AR % O o R S B e wt
A0 ) A 09 R O OB PR R B (5 A et
# 1) o AT R L A AL [
BHFF A A7 O i — 45 8 2 45 FE NS R A 2
& oo MREEE A EIR A 2B E > B R
& B & B ZH 4% BRI 46 E 2 b =3 1 &1 3 4 5K
AL AR B w0 T AR 4R R R B R 4
ZAME AR o 7 52 [ 310 0 TP P IR AR A
o B3R 2 Bl it ke

AR SR A R R R s R 2 R B A I AR A B
B RAR A FH#H 2 BB > Rz # O 58
B oo BB L F) R ML R B AR B 2 K98%
1] 38 A A A A R o A 0 S AR PR AR A
T A 48 1 L ZR A 4 ik e

Bk 2 B bl 3R R A A &8 AL > 4 Bl B B B
BN 2 B 2 W) 2 AR 4 0 (B R T in R
B > R EE R R LA Bt e A B K 2
# T 18 & 4> 7l 11 National

Contributions % Central Provident Fund

Insurance

Schemefit #K o

TE W 75 2R N 0Bk 2 48 B A8 599,000i5 76 (2

EINAE T 601,000% T0) A AS 45 gk A € 5E
i 1) L 2 5 A 2 kK o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HMEH &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEFEE

29. OPERATING LEASES 29. REMA R
The Group
NS
2007 2006
ZEREFLE ZEFNEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T-# 0 T T
Minimum lease payments made under A A AE B A AR 8 K8 AH 4
operating leases in respect of premises A B 228 S A 2 B A
during the year H %9 FH 4 1,161 1,157
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for RAEEH > ASLE E A B 2 2 A A] BUHE £
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 8 L 44 T 8 A R 28 S A 2 e AR AR &9 7l 6 22 7
operating leases in respect of premises which fall due as follows: WA H B E Y
The Group
N
2007 2006
ZREFLAE ZEFNEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T-# 0 T T
Within one year —4ER 585 895
In the second to fifth year inclusive B R AR
(H & i 4F S 45 12 1A) 932 269
1,517 1,164
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the JREAST 2 48 7 L 40 A0 48 8 A< 4 [ 2 HE S == 2
Group for office premises. Leases are negotiated for an average A Z M A o FHA 24 5 HA = 4F o T A
of three years and rentals are fixed for an average of three A7) = AR E — IR o
years.
The Company has no significant operating lease commitments NN B - = I N O

at the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HMEHR &M

For the Year ended 30 June 2007 #EZE =TT +t& A=+ HILEE

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. BN 5
The Group
A 4 1
2007 2006
e 3= Jwas —EFFENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#oT T# T
Sales to an associate o] g N w8 150 267
Interest income from loan to an associate A E & T BE AR SR
FE A 3 4
Delivery expense charged to an associate 1o B A 2 ) ARG 2 i 2 16 16
Service fee to City University of Hong Kong Te) 5 v Bk T R B (TR ) A
(“City University”) IR %5 2 38 21
CityU Enterprises Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of City £ A Etin City Limited (&R A Al Z EER R Z
University, holds a 30% interest in Etin City Limited, a —) 30%ME#E 2 IR K A R A A Sk Z &
substantial shareholder of the Company. =il A
Compensation of key management personnel EEE A B
The remuneration of directors and other members of key HE S e HAth 55 2 L R B R AR A 2 I < A
management during the year was as follows: T @
The Group
A< 4R 1|
2007 2006
ZEFLE — BT N4
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T
Short-term benefits 1 4w Al 4,777 4,643
Post-employment benefits e ik 1% A A 72 72
4,849 4,715
The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined AR EEATEON B BT S B e
by the remuneration committee having regard to the A 2 AR B 2 B K T 15 8 4% 1 E o

performance of individuals and market trends.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY B =

RESULTS E$
Year ended 30 June
BEANAZ=ZTHIL4EE
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
SEEZ AR DERNE ZERAE DR ZERLE
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T ¥ 0 T 5 0 T 5 0 T 5 70 T 0
Revenue wEH 26,447 30,458 27,492 37,356 46,635
Profit/(loss) before tax W B i s A (5 48) (1,272) (911) (3,500) (209) 2,146
Income tax credit/(charge) P8 B A% G (X i) (30) 21 = = -
Profit/(loss) for the year AR A (E5 ) (1,302) (890) (3,500) (209) 2,146
Attributable to: IR AL LS
Equity holders of the AR A A
Company (1,209) (946) (3,284) (273) 2,087
Minority interests D BUBCRE 47 (93) 56 (216) 64 59
(1,302) (890) (3,500) (209) 2,146
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES % KA AE
At 30 June
WAHA=1+H
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
SRR AR DERPE EBRAE EERANE ZEBRLE
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T Tt Tt Tt
Total assets M E 35,210 35,693 33,291 34,118 35,671
Total liabilities o R=E (3,204) (3,902) (4,248) (5,334) (4,400)
32,006 31,791 29,043 28,784 31,271
Equity attributable to equity AR A A
holders of the Company JRE A5 HE 45 32,173 31,878 29,339 29,032 31,483
Minority interests D SRR 47 (167) (87) (296) (248) (212)
32,006 31,791 29,043 28,784 31,271
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